
1 
 

Cabinet Member for a Greener Powys 
 

 
 
 

 
For further information please contact 

 

 
County Hall 

Llandrindod Wells 
Powys 

LD1 5LG 
 
  
steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk 
01597 826374 

 19/04/2023 

 
NOTICE OF INTENDED PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED 

DECISION 
 

The Portfolio Holder has received the following report for a decision to be taken 
under delegated authority. The decision will be taken on 25/04/2023 (i.e. 3 clear 
days after the date of this note). The decision will be published on the Council’s 
website but will not be implemented until 5 clear days after the date of publication of 
the decision) to comply with the call-in process set out in Rule 7.35 of the 
Constitution.  

  
1.  CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS ON STREET WAITING AND 

LOADING AND PARKING MODIFICATIONS - VARIOUS STREETS, 
NEWTOWN  

 
(Pages 3 - 24) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED DECISION  
by 

COUNTY COUNCILLOR JACKIE CHARLTON 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR A GREENER POWYS 

April 2023 
 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Tony Caine, Traffic Systems Manager 
  
REPORT TITLE: Consideration of Objections 

On street waiting and loading and parking 
modifications - Various streets, Newtown 

  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision   

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the objections received during 

the public consultation period with respect to the proposed new waiting 
prohibitions along Llanfair Road and School Lane within the town of 
Newtown.  

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 In a delegated decision dated 9th November 2022, the Portfolio Holder for 

A Greener Powys approved the initiation of the Traffic Regulation Order 
consultation procedure in accordance with The Local Authorities' Traffic 
Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.  

 
2.2 The proposed Permanent Traffic Regulation Order seeks to: - 

 
a) Modify the on-street parking restrictions associated with parking 

bays along High Street, and to introduce certain controls to address 
inconsiderate and obstructive parking that has been noted as being 
problematic both during and after the construction phase of this 
project in the vicinity of Wesley Street and Broad Street. 
 

b) Modify and introduce additional waiting and loading prohibitions and 
modify on street parking restrictions along parts of Shortbridge 
Street and Gas Street to better address the needs of disabled 
persons and to prevent hazardous, inconsiderate and obstructive 
parking between the post office and the war memorial. 

 
c) Introduce a new “goods vehicles only” loading bay on High Street to 

address the needs of those businesses along that street and in the 
vicinity of The Cross. 

 
d) Remove the maximum 20 minutes loading period and no return 

within 1 hour time restrictions from the existing loading bays on 
Severn Street, Shortbridge Street and Market Street so that those 
loading can be more readily policed and more frequently available 

Page 3

1



for use; and to enable the existing loading bay along Market Street 
to be legally utilised by drivers of vehicles which are not goods 
vehicles. These modifications are necessary so that these existing 
loading bays better suit the needs of businesses and members of 
the public accessing businesses at or near those locations. 

 
e) Modify and introduce new and additional waiting prohibitions along 

parts of Llanfair Road and School Lane to secure safer traffic 
movements to and from the school and prohibit identified 
inconsiderate and obstructive parking along those streets. 

 
f) The public consultation proposal plans are attached at Appendix A. 
 

2.3 The public consultation period took place between 2nd December 2022 
and 1st January 2023. 1 comment and 10 objections were received with 
respect to the prohibition of waiting proposals along School Lane and 
Llanfair Road. No representations were received with respect to any of 
the other proposals within Newtown. The points raised in the letters 
together with the officer responses and recommendations are attached at 
Appendix B. 

 
2.4 No objection or other representation was received from the Town Council 

with respect to the traffic Order proposal. 
 

 
3 Advice 
 
3.1 All the objections made with respect to the additional waiting prohibition 

restrictions proposed along Llanfair Road and School Lane have been 
received from residents of Llanfair Road. 

 
3.2 The most common concern raised by the objectors regarding the 

introduction of additional prohibition of waiting restrictions along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road was the reduction in the available unrestricted 
locations along those highways where they could park their vehicles. 
However, the highway authority does not have a duty to provide on-street 
parking spaces for nearby residential properties, and the primary function 
of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic not to facilitate on-
street parking. 
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a 
designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a 
traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, all 
drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code 
which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public highway and 
why. 
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting 
restrictions where observations have shown that drivers regularly park 
vehicles at locations at all times of the day which prevent the safe and free 
flow of traffic. 

 
3.3 Some of the objectors suggested that it was not worthwhile introducing 

additional waiting restrictions as the parents dropping off and collecting 

Page 4



children from the nearby Penygloddfa primary frequently disregarded the 
existing waiting prohibition markings and park at locations where they 
impede access to and from residents’ properties. 
However, observations have shown that vehicles are parked at the 
locations where the additional waiting prohibitions are proposed outside 
of these times along both Llanfair Road and School Lane, and vehicles 
are also frequently parked on the advisory keep clear markings along 
Llanfair Road at all times of the day too, so the inconsiderate parking 
behaviour does not relate solely to school parents. 

 
3.4 Some of the objectors suggest that there is no justification to introduce 

additional prohibition of waiting restrictions, as the real issue along Llanfair 
Road is the speed and the manner in which vehicles are driven along that 
road, and therefore traffic calming measures such as speed humps and 
chicanes are required instead of additional waiting restrictions. 
Whilst some vehicles may be driven along this road at a speed or in a 
manner that is not appropriate for the prevailing traffic conditions, 
observations have shown that some drivers increase their speed to pass 
the long line of vehicles often parked nose to tail along the entire length of 
Llanfair Road between the existing double yellow lines when no gaps have 
been left to permit vehicles to pass one another along this section of 
Llanfair Road. Other drivers resort to mounting and driving along parts of 
the footway to pass oncoming traffic instead. These observations have 
also shown that the advisory keep clear and access markings are 
regularly ignored by residents and school parents, so the highway 
authority is now having to seek to introduce legally enforceable no waiting 
prohibitions at those locations. 
As a consequence of the introduction of the recent legislation by the Welsh 
Government to reduce the restricted road speed limit from 30mph to 
20mph in Wales, a significant length of Llanfair Road and Commercial 
Street is likely to be the subject of a 20mph speed limit after September 
2023, but this will not negate the need to prohibit on street parking where 
it would otherwise disrupt the free and safe flow of traffic. 
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps and/or chicanes are not 
an alternative solution to address the inconsiderate parking issue. 

 
3.5 Some of the objectors have suggested that residents’ parking permit 

spaces should be introduced instead of additional prohibitions of waiting 
at any time as the problem relates to school parents picking up and 
dropping off their children on the roads near to Penygloddfa School, and 
that residents should be able to reserve on street parking spaces near to 
their properties. 
Whilst Powys County Council does have a residents' parking permit 
policy, a previous residents consultation exercise carried out in 2017/18 
failed to demonstrate that there was a majority of residents in support of 
introducing residents' parking permit spaces in this part of Newtown, and 
a residents' parking permit would not secure the use of any individual or 
preferred designated parking space for any particular resident in any 
event. 
It is also of note that there are actually no designated on-street parking 
bays along School Lane and Llanfair Road, there are just sections of these 
roads where waiting/parking is already prohibited, sections where 
advisory keep clear markings have been trialled and have proven to be 

Page 5



unsuccessful, and sections where there are no waiting prohibitions 
reinforced by any traffic regulation orders where drivers are obliged to 
consider the impact of their parking choices in accordance with the rules 
set out in the Highway Code. 

 
3.6 One of the objectors has suggested that there is not a problem with the 

manner in which vehicles are parked along School Lane, as other vehicles 
can still pass those parked vehicles. 
Whilst residents and other drivers who park along School Lane may 
believe that they are parking considerately by parking partially on the 
shared surface footway which runs along the east side of School Lane in 
a manner which still leaves room for most vehicles to pass their parked 
vehicles without having to mount the pedestrian footway along the west 
side of School Lane, when vehicles are parked along the east side of 
School Lane it is not possible for vehicles travelling in opposing directions 
along School lane to pass one another within the carriageway and shared 
surface areas, forcing drivers to reverse considerable distances either 
back up the steep hill to the turning area or back to the Llanfair Road 
junction to the detriment of the safety of all other highway users. 
Vehicles parked along the shared surface area also prevent pedestrians 
from utilising the shared surface area. 
The proposed prohibition of waiting restrictions along School Lane will 
address this inconsiderate parking issue by prohibiting the parking of 
vehicles too close to or within the turning area at the top of School Lane, 
and along that part of School Lane where vehicles travelling in opposing 
directions need to be able to utilise the full carriageway width and the 
shared surface area to pass one another. 
 

3.7 The officer recommendation is to note but overrule all objections received 
during the public consultation process, as vehicles parked at any of the 
locations where no waiting at any time prohibitions are proposed would 
disrupt the safe and free flow of two-way traffic movements to the 
detriment of highway safety at all times of the day. 
 

3.8 The local member supports the officer recommendation to overrule all the 
objections which relate to the additional waiting prohibitions along Llanfair 
Road, but has suggested that a small section of the no waiting at any time 
prohibitions along School Lane are substituted by a lesser no waiting 
restriction to permit a degree of parking to continue to take place along 
School Lane at those times of the day when Penygloddfa County Primary 
School is closed. For further information, refer to section 7 of this report 
below. 

 
4. Resource Implications 
 
4.1 The TRO and any associated signing will be funded by the High Street 

Green Infrastructure capital scheme. The signage and carriageway 
markings for School Lane and Llanfair Road will be funded from the 
existing allocated highway sign maintenance budget. 

 
4.2 The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the content of the report 

and that funding is in place to support the costs associated with either 
recommendation. 

Page 6



 
5. Legal implications 
 
5.1 The Property Lawyer North has reviewed the proposals and confirms it is 

within our power as long as the correct process is followed. 
 
5.2 The Head of Legal Services and the Monitoring Officer has commented 

as follows: “I note the legal comment and have nothing to add to the 
report”. 

 
6. Data Protection 
 
6.1 All personal data collected as part of the consultation will be processed in 

accordance with the Council’s privacy notice published on our website 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/trafficconsult 

 
6.2 The Data Protection Officer notes the processing of personal data in 

connection with this proposal and makes no further comment. 
 
7. Comment from local member(s) 
 
7.1 Cllr Joy Jones has confirmed support for the traffic management 

proposals within the Newtown East ward where no objections were 
received. 

 
7.2 Cllr Peter Lewington as the county councillor for the Newtown West ward 

has confirmed continued support for the introduction of the additional no 
waiting at any time prohibition proposals along Llanfair Road as proposed 
within the original Appendix A proposal plans, as the additional waiting 
prohibition at that location is a necessary traffic management requirement 
to safely address existing vehicular traffic conflicts which would otherwise 
continue to occur at all times of the day. 

 
7.3 Cllr Lewington has indicated that upon reflection, he understands the 

points raised by the objectors, and fully supports the substitution of a small 
section of the no waiting at any time prohibitions along School Lane by a 
prohibition of waiting Monday to Friday between the hours of 8am and 
5pm only, to permit a degree of on street parking to continue along that 
section of School Lane outside of those hours when vehicular traffic can 
reasonably be expected to be encountered travelling to and from 
Penygloddfa County Primary School along School Lane. The proposed 
alternative waiting restrictions for School Lane being identified on the 
attached plan at Appendix C. 

 
8. Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
8.1 An impact assessment is not required. 
 
 
Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 
The Portfolio Holder For A Greener Powys to 
consider the objections received with respect 
to Llanfair Road and School Lane, and to 

To introduce necessary new 
and modified on street waiting 
and loading and parking 

Page 7

https://en.powys.gov.uk/trafficconsult


determine either Option A or Option B as set 
out below:- 
 
Option A - That all the objections relating to 
Llanfair Road and School Lane are noted but 
overruled. Therefore the original proposal 
plans relating to AREA CODE PLAN CP185 
within Appendix A to be implemented in 
accordance with the Local Authorities’ Traffic 
Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1996. 
 
Option B - That the objections relating to 
Llanfair Road are noted but overruled, and the 
objections relating to School Lane are partially 
upheld and the proposals for School lane 
modified in accordance with the plan attached 
at Appendix C. Therefore the modified 
proposal plans relating to AREA CODE PLAN 
CP185 within Appendix C to be implemented in 
accordance with the Local Authorities’ Traffic 
Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1996.  

controls to prevent nuisance 
and obstructive parking and to 
improve the existing waiting 
and loading and parking 
allocations along various 
streets at Newtown. 

 
Relevant Policy: Corporate Improvement Plan 2021-25 : Improve our 

Infrastructure to Support Regeneration and Attract 
Investment - We will actively compete for any grant 
funding opportunities, and subject to such funding, deliver 
transport infrastructure projects, develop active travel, 
support suitable transport options and improve road safety. 
 

Within Policy: Y / N Within Budget: Y / N 
 
Relevant Local Member(s): Cllr Joy Jones - member for Newtown East ward. 

Cllr Peter Lewington – member for Newtown West 
ward. 

 
Person(s) To Implement Decision: Chris Lloyd 
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented: As soon as possible 

 
Is a review of the impact of the decision required? 
 

Y / N 

 
Contact Officer:       Chris Lloyd  
Tel:             01686 611563  
Email:   chris.lloyd@powys.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service:      Matt Perry 
Corporate Director:  Nigel Brinn 

 
Background Papers used to prepare Report: 

• Public Consultation Traffic Regulation Order proposal plans 
(Appendix A) 

Page 8

mailto:chris.lloyd@powys.gov.uk


• Representations and officer responses/recommendations 
(Appendix B) 

• Option B - Modified Traffic Regulation Order proposal plan for 
Llanfair Road and School Lane - AREA CODE CP185 (Appendix C) 

 
DELEGATED DECISION NEW REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION 3 
 
 

Page 9



 

Page 10



Cyngor Sir County Council

Vastre Enterprise Park

Parc Menter Vastre /

DRENEWYDD/ Y

NEWTOWN

Barn Fields

PENYGLODDFA

Cae-cymric

Hendidley

MILFORD

P
age 11



Cyngor Sir County Council

106.4m

105.5m

107.6m

107.2m

107.0m

105.6m

Picnic Area

Statue

L
a
d
yw

e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t

E
l S

ub S
ta

War Memorial

Car Park

TCBs

Bridge

Post

Posts

Posts

Posts

Posts

P
osts

Foot

Posts

Posts

TCBs

TCB

LB

LB

TCB

ESS

Issues

12

La
dy

w
ell 

Sho
pp

in
g 

C
en

tre

69

PH

70

66

65

R
osslyn

M
in

-y
r-a

fo
n

M
aesh

afre
n

PH

3

4

Glendene

The

Willows

23

17

Gas Gov

PC

15

13

PO

Bronwydd

16

1
0

9

2
2

1

2

1
8

1
5

1
9

1
7

30

2
0

26

32

31

28

2
3

27

25

2
1

2
4

29

1
3

1
6

6

8 9

10

2
1

26

25

9
10

Garage

11

1

12

10
11

1

1
4

9

17

1
2

A
sh

fo
rd

Bryn

Isel

Rosemount

7

9

1
6

10

5

6

Sunlea

17

20
21

19

18

5

to 24 22

9

3
4

2

1

4

PH

18

54

Sub Sta

47
48

to
 5

1

El

El

Sub Sta

4
9

6

PH

1
2

5

3
PH

1

4

38

1

Museum

3

4

Bank

26

Bank

3

2

1

PH

4
5

4
6

5
0

5
2

7

21

23

22

1
4

3
9

3
7

3
6

3
8

1
2

11

4
0

4
11

3

Club

PH

B
e
a
r L

a
n
e
s

PH

20

18

Ty'r Bont

Severn

Pp Ho

El Sub Sta

Tk

Hospice

Hall

Shelters

Oriel Davies

Memorial Gallery

Bus Station

Club House

C
h
u
rc

h

Bodlondeb

25

2

1

2631

30

28

30

27

3

Surg
ery

10

9

8

12

5

4

3
1

2

10

26

8

12

13

PC 6

7

Canol

Ty-

Isaf

Ty

16

Hotel

22

17

13 Market

Hall

C
hurch

U
nited R

eform
ed

Lodge

1 2

O
ffice

s
C

ou
n
cil

E
D

W
A
R
D

S

F
IE

L
D

HEOL LES H
ERBIE

RS

C
A
M

B
R
IA

N
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

G
A

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

PA
RK

ER
'S

 L
A

N
E

CROSS

THE

THE B
ANK

SHORT BRIDGE STREET

N
E
W

 R
O
A
D

SH
O

R
TB

R
ID

G
E STR

EET

NEW ROAD

SEVERN

SQUARE

S
T
 M

A
R
Y
'S

 C

T
U

R
N

E
R

'S
 L

A
N

E

C
R
O

W
N

 S
T
R
E
E
T

SEV
E
R

N
 S

TR
EE

T

B
A

C
K

 L
A

N
E

B
R

O
A

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
E
S
L
E
Y
 S

T
R
E
E
T

W
E
S
L
E
Y
 P

L
A
C
E

H
IG

H
 S

TR
EE

T

L
A
N
E

B
A
C
K

M
A
R
K
E
T
 S

T

M
A
R
K
E
T
 S

T
R
E
E
T

 /
 L

A
D
Y
W

E
L
L
 L

A
N
E

A4811

B4568

B
4568

B
4
5
6
8

B
4568

B
4
5
6
8

C2087

U
4
2
5
0

U4250

U
42

48

U
4249

U4249

U
42

47

P
age 12



Cyngor Sir County Council

112.4m

112.0m

134.4m

CR

C
S

El Sub Sta

FB

E
l S

ub S
ta

LB

El Sub Sta

TCB

LB

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

PENYGLODDFA

Barn Lodge

Avondale

4
8

yr Afon

Llys Glan
1to

40
Gorwel

4
4

The

Lyndon

G
reenfields

Ael-y

Rozel

S
e
re

n
ity

5
2

Timbuktu

Hafan

Sans-serif

Homestay

Ngulia

Green Acre

17

Bryn

Amlyn

Bryn Goleu

Met

Esmay Cottage

Dilian

Bryn

Fairv
ie

w

Green
Teg

Haven

Bron-y-

Gan

Brynawel

TribanTrem-y-

Hillside

Stoneleigh

Godre'r Coed

Little

Gidding

Gwelfryn

Bryn Heulog

Hafod

10

12

The Rest

Brookside

Heatherly

Nant y Ffridd

Hill View

41to49

-Bryn

PW

M
o
n
 y

 R
h
o
s

Theatre

M
o
n
tr
e
ux

1

Villa

Newydd

Ty

Tan-y-Bryn

Myrtle

Goleufryn

Y

1

W
estbury

C
ott

C
rosslands

P
en

dre

B
w

thyn

R
ose

2

17

15

2
1

16

Budleigh

22

3

19

7

G
re

en
ba

nk

F
rancis P

lace

2

Lyngarth

Delfr
yn

1

O
akle

y

Garden Place

9

1

1

Hotel

29

3

25

Brynawelon
Arwel

R
hanc

y M
ynydd

West W inds

Pen-Arth

Hyf
rd

le

V
iew

C
am

nan
t

Ardwyn

36

Jaun
drell C

t

37

31

3

1

2

6

4

3

5

Hill 
To

ps

Churc
h

All S
aints

8

The O
ld W

are
house

1-1
0

Bay

Ho

9

Rhoswen

2

1

H
afo

d

G
w

yn
fry

n

1

Awel

Primary School

Penygloddfa County

Danum

Bryn

Berllan

Courti

Rose Lea

Sheeling

Tamarama

The

Cwm

Bali

2
3

6
2

4

2
2

5
1

High

Bryn D
erw

en

PW

2 to
 8

Garth

Severn-View

C
yn

la
is

4

Erw
 F

ach

Villa

HillBre
eze

2
1

Bry
n V

illa
s

9

W
ood

la
nd

1

4

8

6

2

7

5

1

Fra
nkw

ell T
err

7

16

9

Bry
nfie

ld H
ouse

38 to 43

44 10

Mus

1 B
ay V

illas

6

42

13

12

20

8

1-8

11

1
8

Y Gorlan

9
 t

o
1

4

1
7

1

The O
ld M

alt H
ouse

6

2

2

The

4
4

1

4

Hotel

3

3

4

51Crescent

28
27

3
4

3
5

3
6

24

The

Vastre

H
ill Top

17

G
ou

gh
s

3

Silver

View

Wood

3
8

Arches

Bryn

Rhiwlas

1

C
ou

rt

2
8

Brymor

32 5

1

1

331 3
82
4

Cottage

1
5

1
4

1
6
a

1
4
a

1
5
b

1
6

11

1
0

2

Weavers

1

B
e
e
c
h
le

a

Lynwood

19

2
1

Magnolia

Mount

Pleasant

3

6

Lynwood

Close

18

1

25

15

6
8

77

7

14

Brook

Little

15

Derron

14

The

Croft

16

1
1

8

IF
O
R

L
L
Y
S

CANAL ROAD

C
R
O
S
S
 S

T
R
E
E
T

F
R
A
N
K

W
E
L
L
 S

T
R
E
E
T

G
A
R
D
E
N
 L

A
N
E

L
L

A
N

F
A

I
R

 R
O

A
D

C
W

M
 L

L
A

N
F
A

I
R

F
A
IR

F
IE

L
D
 D

R
IV

E

B
RY

N

G
A

R
DE

N
S

BEEC

C
O

M
M

E
R
C
IA

L
 S

T
R
E
E
T

B
R
Y
N

 S
T
R
E
E
T

U
N

IO
N

 S
T
R
E
E
T

C
H
A
P
E
L
 S

T
R
E
E
T

VASTRE V
IE

W

S
C
H
O
O

L
 L

A
N
E

COMMERCIAL STREET

/ T
REM

 V
ASTRE

SCENT G
AR

DEN
S

B
R
Y
N

 S
T
R
E
E
T

C
R

E
S
C

E
N

T
 S

T
R

E
E
T

B4568

U4258

C
20

11

P
age 13



Cyngor Sir County Council

P
age 14



Cyngor Sir County Council

112.4m

112.0m

134.4m

LB

El Sub Sta

E
l S

ub S
ta

LB

LB

Bryn Bank

Path (um)

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

PENYGLODDFA

Idloes

21

Lyndon

G
reenfields

Ael-y

Rozel

S
e
re

n
ity

Hafan

Sans-serif

Homestay

Ngulia

Green Acre

17

Bryn

Amlyn

1

Bryn Goleu

Met

Esmay Cottage

Dilian

Bryn

Fairv
ie

w

Green
Teg

Haven

1

4
4

Bron-y-

Penfro

Gan

Brynawel

TribanTrem-y-

Hillside

Stoneleigh

Godre'r Coed

Little

Gidding

Gwelfryn

Bryn Heulog

Hafod
10

12

The Rest

Brookside

Heatherly

Nant y Ffridd

Hill View

-Bryn

PW

M
o
n
 y

 R
h
o
s

Theatre

M
o
n
tr
e
ux

1

Villa

Newydd

Ty

Tan-y-Bryn

Myrtle

Goleufryn

Y

1

W
estbury

C
ott

C
rosslands

P
en

dre

B
w

thyn

R
ose

2

17

15

2
1

16

Budleigh

22

3

19

7

G
re

en
ba

nk

F
rancis P

lace

2

Lyngarth

Delfr
yn

1

O
akle

y

Garden Place

9

1

1

Hotel

29

3

25

Brynawelon
Arwel

R
hanc

y M
ynydd

West W inds

Pen-Arth

Hyf
rd

le

V
iew

C
am

nan
t

Ardwyn

36

37

31

2

6

4

3

5

Hill 
To

ps

Churc
h

All S
aints

Bay

Ho

Rhoswen

2

H
afo

d

G
w

yn
fry

n

1

Awel

Primary School

Penygloddfa County

Danum

Bryn

Berllan

Courti

Rose Lea

Sheeling

Tamarama

The

Cwm

Bali

2
3

6
2

4

2
2

5
1

High

Bryn D
erw

en

PW

2 to
 8

Garth

Severn-View

C
yn

la
is

4

Erw
 F

ach

Villa

HillBre
eze

2
1

1

Bry
n V

illa
s

9

W
ood

la
nd

8

1

8

6

Bry
nfie

ld H
ouse

1 B
a

42

13

12

20

8

1-8

11

1
8

Y Gorlan

9
 t

o
1

4

1
7

1

The O
ld M

alt H
ouse

6

2

2

28
27

3
4

3
5

3
6

24

The

Vastre

H
ill Top

17

G
ou

gh
s

3

Silver

View

Wood

3
8

Arches

Bryn

Rhiwlas

1

C
ou

rt

2
8

32 5

331 3
82
4

Cottage

1
5

1
4

1
6
a

1
4
a

1
5
b

1
6

11

1
0

2

Weavers

1

19

2
1

Magnolia

Mount

Pleasant

3

6

Lynwood

14

4

Close

18

1

25

15

or Montgomery County

Fan Gorau

Ysbyty Sir Drefaldwyn

Infirmary

16

6

12

11

30

37

42

Tradyddan

12

Terrace

36

48

9

15

The

Croft

16

8
4

P
age 15



Cyngor Sir County Council

105.5m

107.6m

107.2m

107.0m

105.6m

C
R

Statue

L
a
d
yw

e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t

E
l S

ub S
ta

TCBs

Post

Posts

Posts

Posts

Posts

P
osts

Posts

TCB

LB

TCBs

TCB

LB

LB

TCB

ESS

Posts

S
lo

pi
ng

 m
as

on
ry

P
a
th

Car Park

FB

Posts

Posts

Playground

R
iv

e
r 
S

e
ve

rn
/ A

fo
n
 H

a
fr
e
n

DRENEWYDD/ Y

NEWTOWN

12

La
dy

w
ell 

Sho
pp

in
g 

C
en

tre

66

65

17

PO

Bronwydd

16

8 9

10

2
1

26

25

35
36

9
10

Garage

11

1

12

10
11

1

1
4

9

17

1
2

A
sh

fo
rd Bryn

Isel

Rosemount

7

9

1
6

10

5

6

Sunlea

17

20
21

19

18
5

to 24 22

9

3
4

2

1

4

PH

18

61
62

52

56

55
54

53

11

Sub Sta

47
48

to
 5

1

El

El

Sub Sta

4
9

6

6

PH

1
2

5

3

PH

1

4

38

1

Museum

3

4

Bank

26

Bank

3

2

1

PH

4
5

4
6

5
0

5
2

7

21

23

22

Hotel

The Black Boy

3
1

1
4

3
9

3
7

3
6

3
8

1
2

11

4
0

4
11

3

Club

PH

B
e
a
r L

a
n
e
s

PH

20

18

Council

Ty'r Bont

2
1

Offices

Cinema

Severn

Pp Ho

El Sub Sta

Tk

Hospice

Hall

Shelters

Oriel Davies

Memorial Gallery

PC

Bus Station

Bowling Green

Glan-y-dwr

7t
o1

3

1t
o
6

Club House

C
h
u
rc

h

Bodlondeb

14to25

25

2

1

26

31

30
28

30

27

3

Sur
ge

ry

10

9

8

12

5

4

3
1

2

10

26

8

12

13

PC 6

7

Canol

Ty-

Isaf

Ty

16

Hotel

22

17

13

Market

Hall

U
nited R

Lodge

O
ffice

s
C

ou
n
cil

P
age 16



Cyngor Sir County Council

110.3m

104.2m

103.9m

110.2m

111.3m

104.5m

105.2m

ED Bdy

CR

El Sub Sta

Post

Posts

El

Sub Sta

P
a
th

 (u
m

)

/ Afon Hafren

Posts

LB

River Severn / Pont Cambrian

Cambrian Bridge

Path (um)

Picnic Area

War Memorial

Car Park

Bridge

Foot

Posts

Issues

Issues

o 34

to

18

14

20 to 26

Kilns

Glandwr

Fernlea

Lyncott

Lime

The

Dolafon

Kiln Green

T
y
 B

ry
n

P
e
m

b
rid

g
e

H
o
u
s
e

Hafen Deg

Depot

Factory

Garage

14

15

2

Dolafon Terra
ce

6
5

13

16

8

13

Ivy Croft

G
ra

fo
rd

8
2

8
054

56

1
2

10

7

9
8

9
6

5

6
7

9

1

South View

1

3

2
1

7

11

8

Twin Oaks

9

10

39

Graylea

PH

El Sub Sta

1

Cambrian

Place

Depot

3

5

4

2
8

2
6

A
d
ro

n

4

1

A
b
e
re

ra
v
e

Glendale

50

52

Henllyn

5

Vidella

Meeting

Brethrens

69

PH

70

F
a
irw

a
y

1

4

Room

R
osslyn

M
in

-y
r-a

fo
n

M
aesh

afre
n

Avon

Lea

1
6

Tien-ho

Aelwyd

PH

Glendene

The

Willows

17

Gas Gov

PC

15

13

16

6

Cambria
New

Maesgwyn
7 2

Glas

Pant

2
1

3
03

1

2
0

1
0

9

13

2
2

1

2

12

1
8

12

1
5

1
9

1
7

Hall

11

30

2
0

26

32

31

28

2
3

27

25

2
1

2
4

29

11

1
3

10

1
6

6

9

8

75

12

Roseholme

Superstore

P
age 17



Cyngor Sir County Council

115.3m

112.0m

110.2m

111.3m

MP 47.75

Post

SM

Car P
ark

SP

TCB

Cycle P
ath

FB

El Sub Sta

Play Area

Tank

MP 47.5

El Sub Sta

Post

Posts

SP

Picnic Area

War Memorial

Car Park

Hafen Deg

Depot

Works

39

PH

El Sub Sta

1

Cambrian

Place

Depot

3

13

136

134

135

133

1
4

1

18

7

1
4

5

137

Primary

Treowen

County

Mount

Robin

Hill

1

Beechcroft

Cambrian House

Thornleigh

The

1
4

3

Ivy Cottage

Woodbine Cottage

A
g

ric
u

ltu
re

 H
o

u
s
e

29

26

Y Drenewydd /
Newtown Station

284

285

267

69

PH

70

Meredith Court

Rectory

Rectory

Close

Firs Glen

Cedars
The

21 43

25

1

7

20

4

1

21

4 S
tone Terrace

1

23
22

S
m

ithy C
ourt

7

17

3

18

PH

The

36

216

C
am

bria
n S

quare

Lodge

41

43

PH

5

8

6

3

Q
ueens C

ourt

7

4

26
25

3
2 3
1

24

1
5

20

1
6

23

Hafren

Llys

1
4

12a

6

12

11

1
2

Youth and

Community
 C

entre

5

2 1

19

Clifton

Villa

Nythfa

Ty Y Bobl

17

Gas Gov

15

13

16

Superstore

80

El Sub Sta

84

Y Bwthyn

30

35

81

76

82

83
92

7
3

85

91

23

98

2
4

97

7
5

7
9

107

101

109

106

Hill

1
3
2

Highfields

1
4
0

Croft

1
4

2

Erwlas283

286

P
age 18



Represe
ntor 
Number

Representation Object or 
Support

Response Recommendation

1 I have today received notification that parking restrictions are to be considered on Llanfair Road and School Lane. I strongly 
object to this as it would cause significant disruption to my mother's mobility issues as she can only leave the house when 
accompanied by a member of her family in their car, and parking restrictions would leave less parking spaces. A more suitable 
option would be to install Traffic calming measures such as speed bumps to deter the fast pace drivers and to encourage 
parents of school children to park and walk. Please, please reconsider this parking restriction proposal.

Object The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps are not an alternative solution to the inconsiderate parking issue.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

2 I have received a letter regarding putting double yellow lines on Llanfair Road. 
I think this will cause a lot of frustration as already residents are finding it difficult to find a space as it is especially busy at school 
times before 9am and after 3pm .
There is not ample parking already so this will just add to residents frustration. 
I think speed bumps would be more beneficial as this will slow the traffic and be safe for the school children but will still allow us 
to park.

Object The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps are not an alternative solution to the inconsiderate parking issue.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

3 I wish to object in the strongest possible terms to the proposed introduction of double yellow lines, creating a "no waiting at any 
time" restriction along a section of Llanfair Road and School Lane.
There is currently just about enough parking available for the houses in Llanfair Road. The removal of any parking spaces in 
School Lane and Llanfair Road would cause a significant problem for residents, as there would then be only 6 parking places 
servicing over 20 properties in Francis Place and the lower end of Llanfair Road.
We live in a rural county with limited public transport, so owning a vehicle is a necessity for many residents.
If the Council's proposal is to improve the safety of children travelling to and from Penygloddfa Primary School, then any parking 
restrictions, if they had to be introduced at all, are only necessary between the hours of 3pm and 4pm. There is absolutely no 
justification to permanently remove parking spaces 24 hours a day.
However, I cannot see how removing ANY on street parking, especially in Llanfair Road, will improve safety for children. A far 
more effective solution would be to introduce a 20mph speed limit at drop off and pick up times.
Parents dropping off and collecting their children already ignore the existing parking restrictions and will continue to do so with 
any extension of parking restrictions unless a traffic warden is on site issuing tickets EVERY day.
All this proposal will do is cause significant problems for residents.
It will NOT improve the safety of children.
I strongly urge the Council to reconsider this ill thought out proposal.
I await your response with great interest.

Object The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps are not an alternative solution to the inconsiderate parking issue.
As a consequence of the introduction of the recent legislation by the Welsh Government to reduce the restricted road speed limit from 
30mph to 20mph in Wales, a significant length of Llanfair Road and Commercial Street is likely to be the subject of a 20mph speed limit 
after September 2023, but this will not negate the need to prohibit on street parking where it would otherwise disrupt the free and safe 
flow of traffic.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

4 I have only just today received the letter about parking issues, its very late to receive this kind of letter.
Anyway I have a disabled son if at all possible I would like a disabled parking space opposite my house by the white cottages 
because he has difficulty walking, if you put a parking restriction on that space it would make it very hard for him and me.
If you could consider this it would help please consider parking restrictions because of my son’s situation.

Object The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Any requests for advisory on-street disabled persons parking bays can be submitted to the local highway authority for consideration 
once this permanent traffic regulation order process has been concluded.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

P
age 19



5 I am a resident who has a private garage on Llanfair Road and I want to make sure that yellow lines are not put in front of my 
garage as it is private property. My garage is on that road and I am a resident I have a right to park in front on my garage. As 
residents we should be given special parking badges/permits that allows us to park next to our houses keeping our vehicles safe 
and allowing our children to get into their houses safely. That is a busy main road and there is nowhere else safe for residents to 
park. I think unless you are a resident in this road they should not be parking here. Permits for residents only and signs stating 
this should be enough.
I don’t not want double yellow lines in front of my garage.

Object The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Whilst Powys County Council does have a residents' parking permit policy, a previous residents consultation exercise carried out in 
2017/18 failed to demonstrate that there was a majority of residents in support of introducing residents' parking permit spaces in this 
part of Newtown, and a residents' parking permit would not secure the use of any individual or preferred designated parking space for 
any particular resident on any event.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

6 As a resident living on Llanfair road I can’t see how reducing the parking for residents will help with the problem at the school as 
most of us don’t park our vehicles here between the hours of 07:00 to 17:00 Monday to Friday , I think a timed no parking zone 
would work a lot better without causing the residents any more difficulty parking .

Comments The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Observations over an extended period have shown that vehicles are parked along Llanfair Road and School Lane at the locations 
where additional waiting restrictions are proposed at all times of the day. 

Not considered to be an 
objection, simply a 
representation.

7 Concerned about proposal to impose a no waiting at any time restriction on one section of Llanfair Road where we reside and on 
a large section of School Lane.
We live on Llanfair Road, just up from the entrance to School Lane, and along with several of my neighbours have complained to 
the police many times about the fast and dangerous driving on this stretch of the road. 
Consider that proposals will neither make the road safer nor prevent inconsiderate and obstructive parking, when the most 
inconsiderate and obstructive parking in this area occurs at school pick-up and drop off times only when parents cars are parked 
everywhere and without thought. The existing double yellow lines are routinely ignored by said parents so the idea to simply add 
yet more double yellow lines is just not going to rectify the issue except it will negatively impact the lives of residents, who already 
find it extremely difficult to find parking spaces. Our neighbours have often been unable to leave their house because a parent 
has parked across their driveway or have been unable to park outside their own homes at these times of the day.
Another effective deterrent could simply be made by making it residents parking only with parking permits for instance.
As for the concerns over the safety of children and of traffic, we fail to see how this can possibly be addressed with parking 
restrictions.
Traffic speed here is in general far too high for a residential area near the entrance to a primary school, and are aware of 
damage to vehicles caused by reckless and dangerous driving up and down this road. Action is urgently needed to reduce traffic 
speed and reckless driving in the area. Adding more parking restrictions to already ignored parking restrictions simply will not 
rectify the issues and will do nothing to improve road safety. The improvements to the zebra crossing at the bottom of Llanfair 
Road have done nothing to improve safety.
The only way to reduce traffic speed and improve road safety around here is the installation of traffic-calming measures without 
removing much-needed residential parking, such as speed humps, chicanes and a raised zebra crossing. 
The decision to place a small laminated notice on a lamppost where several residents would not look or simply not notice is 
considered to be a way of ensuring local residents would be unaware of these proposals and allow it to slip through unnoticed. 
Powys Council should have notified all residents by post.
We object to these proposals and call the need for a public consultation on this matter.

Object plus 
other 
comments

The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Whilst Powys County Council does have a residents' parking permit policy, a previous residents consultation exercise carried out in 
2017/18 failed to demonstrate that there was a majority of residents in support of introducing residents' parking permit spaces in this 
part of Newtown, and a residents' parking permit would not secure the use of any individual or preferred designated parking space for 
any particular resident on any event.
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps and/or chicanes are not an alternative solution to the inconsiderate parking issue.
As a consequence of the introduction of the recent legislation by the Welsh Government to reduce the restricted road speed limit from 
30mph to 20mph in Wales, a significant length of Llanfair Road and Commercial Street is likely to be the subject of a 20mph speed limit 
after September 2023, but this will not negate the need to prohibit on street parking where it would otherwise disrupt the free and safe 
flow of traffic.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

P
age 20



8 We are residents on Llanfair Road.  If the Council's proposal to reduce parking for residents goes ahead, it will merely show that 
the problems have not been addressed.
Have you actually spoken to residents about the problems?  They know the main issues very well.
Speed is the big problem.  One can drive from Commercial Street along Llanfair Road without encountering any traffic-calming 
measures whatsoever until one reaches Tregynon.  Consequently, traffic speed in the area is excessively high.  Moreover, from 
McDonald's to the Crescent roundabout there are no raised zebra crossings.
It has become hazardous for us trying to emerge from our driveway, since cars leaving Newtown give way to those coming down 
Llanfair Road, which often speed up as a result.
Our property has off-road parking, but we are often unable to get in or out, as food- or parcel-delivery vans and parents of 
children attending Penygloddfa School are parked in the way.  The double yellow lines which run across the mouth of our 
driveway are totally ignored.  Extra double yellow lines will not help as vehicles already park on the keep clear marking with 
impunity.
If there is to be an effective solution to these problems, then the Council should consult the residents. We know of
no residents in the area who have been consulted on this as yet.
Since we, the residents, have to live with whatever measures the Council finally decide to implement, we think it only fair that we 
should be involved in the final decision.

Object plus 
other 
comments

The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Observations have shown that some drivers increase their speed to pass the long line of vehicles often parked nose to tail along the 
entire length of Llanfair Road between the existing double yellow lines when no gaps have been left to permit vehicles to pass one 
another along this section of Llanfair Road. Other drivers resort to mounting and driving along parts of the footway to pass oncoming 
traffic instead. These observations have also shown that the advisory keep clear and access markings are regularly ignored by 
residents and school parents, so the highway authority is now having to seek to introduce legally enforceable no waiting prohibitions at 
those locations.
As a consequence of the introduction of the recent legislation by the Welsh Government to reduce the restricted road speed limit from 
30mph to 20mph in Wales, a significant length of Llanfair Road and Commercial Street is likely to be the subject of a 20mph speed limit 
after September 2023, but this will not negate the need to prohibit on street parking where it would otherwise disrupt the free and safe 
flow of traffic.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

P
age 21



9 I object to the proposed Parking Prohibitions on School Lane and Llanfair Road.
This unfairly discriminates against the residents who park in these areas. The main reason lack of child safety at drop off and 
pick up times is due to the parents themselves, not adhering to current parking restrictions and speed limits. The school itself 
does not take responsibility and communicate with parents the appropriate methods of dropping off or picking up their children 
and allows staff to park along school lane sometimes blocking residents access. The zebra crossing at the bottom of school lane 
is a hazard as cars speed along this road and very often cannot stop in time to allow people to cross. 
A more appropriate solution would be to issue residents in the area with a parking permit then using parking enforcement to fine 
those who are not in possession of a permit.  In addition, put speed humps along commercial street to avoid drivers speeding.
The school should be encouraging (incentivising)  parents and staff to cycle/walk to and from school.

Object plus 
other 
comments

The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Whilst Powys County Council does have a residents' parking permit policy, a previous residents consultation exercise carried out in 
2017/18 failed to demonstrate that there was a majority of residents in support of introducing residents' parking permit spaces in this 
part of Newtown, and a residents' parking permit would not secure the use of any individual or preferred designated parking space for 
any particular resident on any event.
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps are not an alternative solution to the inconsiderate parking issue.
As a consequence of the introduction of the recent legislation by the Welsh Government to reduce the restricted road speed limit from 
30mph to 20mph in Wales, a significant length of Llanfair Road and Commercial Street is likely to be the subject of a 20mph speed limit 
after September 2023, but this will not negate the need to prohibit on street parking where it would otherwise disrupt the free and safe 
flow of traffic.
The comments suggesting that the school should be encouraging parents and staff to cycle/walk to and from the school are noted.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

10 The reasons given for the proposal by the Council to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions along parts of Llanfair Road 
and School Lane are all valid concerns, yet the proposals fail signally to address them.
I live on Llanfair Road, just up from the entrance to School Lane, and along with several of my neighbours have complained to 
the police many times about the fast and dangerous driving on this stretch of the road. 
Consider that proposals will neither make the road safer nor prevent inconsiderate and obstructive parking, when the most 
inconsiderate and obstructive parking in this area occurs at school pick-up and drop off times only when parents cars are parked 
everywhere and without thought. The existing double yellow lines are routinely ignored by said parents so the idea to simply add 
yet more double yellow lines is just not going to rectify the issue except it will negatively impact the lives of residents, who already 
find it extremely difficult to find parking spaces. Our neighbours have often been unable to leave their house because a parent 
has parked across their driveway or have been unable to park outside their own homes at these times of the day.
Since the council’s stated aim is to secure safer traffic movements to and from the school, why impose a “no waiting at any time” 
restriction when there is no school traffic outside school hours.
Traffic speed here is in general far too high for a residential area near the entrance to a primary school, and are aware of 
damage to vehicles caused by reckless and dangerous driving up and down this road. Action is urgently needed to reduce traffic 
speed and reckless driving in the area. Adding more parking restrictions to already ignored parking restrictions simply will not 
rectify the issues and will do nothing to improve road safety. The improvements to the zebra crossing at the bottom of Llanfair 
Road have done nothing to improve safety.
The only way to reduce traffic speed and improve road safety around here is the installation of traffic-calming measures without 
removing much-needed residential parking, such as speed humps, chicanes and a raised zebra crossing. 
The decision to place a small laminated notice on a lamppost where several residents would not look or simply not notice or a 
page on a website which few will ever visit is considered to be a way of ensuring local residents would be unaware of these 
proposals and allow it to slip through unnoticed. Powys Council should have notified all residents by post.

Object plus 
other 
comments

The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Observations have shown that some drivers increase their speed to pass the long line of vehicles often parked nose to tail along the 
entire length of Llanfair Road between the existing double yellow lines when no gaps have been left to permit vehicles to pass one 
another along this section of Llanfair Road. Other drivers resort to mounting and driving along parts of the footway to pass oncoming 
traffic instead. These observations have also shown that the advisory keep clear and access markings are regularly ignored by 
residents and school parents, so the highway authority is now having to seek to introduce legally enforceable no waiting prohibitions at 
those locations.
As a consequence of the introduction of the recent legislation by the Welsh Government to reduce the restricted road speed limit from 
30mph to 20mph in Wales, a significant length of Llanfair Road and Commercial Street is likely to be the subject of a 20mph speed limit 
after September 2023, but this will not negate the need to prohibit on street parking where it would otherwise disrupt the free and safe 
flow of traffic.
Traffic calming measures such as speed humps are not an alternative solution to the inconsiderate parking issue.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

11 The area at the start of School Lane subject to the proposed no waiting at any time restrictions is currently used as a parking 
area for the occupants of numbers 1 to 6 Llanfair Road and is the only nearby area available to the residents for parking.
School Lane is bordered on one side by a wide pavement bounded by bollards to provide a safe route for the children and other 
pedestrians to access Penygloddfa Primary School and on the other side by an area of 'pavement' too narrow for pedestrian use.
The occupants of 1 to 6 Llanfair Road park their vehicles off the road as far is practicable, using the unusable area of 'pavement'; 
this leaves adequate space for other vehicles to use the Lane.
In the 'Statement of Reasons' it cites as justification
- 'safety of children travelling to and from Penygloddfa primary school' but as shown above there exists an adequate safe route 
for the children accessing the School.
- 'to secure safer traffic movements to and from the school' but as shown above there exists adequate space for other vehicles to 
use the Lane.
- 'prevent inconsiderate and obstructive parking' but as shown above the resident parking is far from 'inconsiderate' and is not 
'obstructive' as it leaves adequate space for other vehicles to use the Lane.
As a resident of Llanfair Road I object to the arbitrary and unnecessary introduction of new restrictions, removing the availability 
of resident parking without providing a practical alternative.

Object plus 
other 
comments

The primary function of a public highway is to enable the movement of traffic, not to facilitate on-street parking.
Nobody has a right to park on the public highway unless they do so in a designated on-street parking bay in accordance with any waiting 
restrictions that may apply to that parking bay as a consequence of a traffic regulation order. Where there are no on-street parking bays, 
all drivers are obliged to follow the guidance set out in the Highway Code which identifies where it is not acceptable to park on a public 
highway and why.
The purpose of the proposed traffic regulation is to impose waiting restrictions where drivers regularly park vehicles at locations at all 
times of the day which prevent the safe and free flow of traffic.
Whilst residents and other drivers who park along School Lane may believe that they are parking considerately by parking partially on 
the shared surface footway which runs along the east side of School Lane in a manner which still leaves room for most vehicles to pass 
their parked vehicles without having to mount the pedestrian footway along the west side of School Lane, when vehicles are parked 
along the east side of School Lane it is not possible for vehicles travelling in opposing directions along School lane to pass one another 
within the carriageway and shared surface areas, forcing drivers to reverse considerable distances either back up the steep hill to the 
turning area or back to the Llanfair Road junction to the detriment of the safety of all other highway users. Vehicles parked along the 
shared surface area also prevent pedestrians from utilising the shared surface area. The proposed prohibition of waiting restrictions 
along School Lane will address this inconsiderate parking issue by prohibiting the parking of vehicles too close to or within the turning 
area at the top of School Lane, and along that part of School Lane where vehicles travelling in opposing directions need to be able to 
utilise the full carriageway width and the shared surface area to pass one another.

Overrule objection and 
proceed to introduce the 
waiting prohibitions as 
proposed along School 
Lane and Llanfair Road.

P
age 22



��������	� ��
������
��	


������

������

������

�	


��
���
��



��

���


��

�	

�	

	����	���

�������
��



��

�
�
�

��

�
�������� 

!"�#$%

	���

��

���"#�

�
�$$�&'$�"%

 $�(�

)#*$�



$
�$
�
'��

+�&��


��%(%$�'&

+#�$%���

�,��'�

��$$�� -�$

�.

	���

 ����

�

	�����#�$�

/$�


%����0#���,$

�'�'��

	���

��
'�1
'$
2

��$$�
3$,

+�1$�

�

�
�

	�#�(�(

�$�&�#

���

	����2$�

3�'���3�$�(�(

+'��%'"$


�#�$�$',�

�#"�$4��0#$"

�'���$

�'""'�,

�2$�&���

	����+$��#,

+�&#"
��

��

3�$�)$%�

	�##�%'"$

+$���$���

��������&�'""

+'���5'$2

(	���

�6

/
#
�
��
�)
�
#
%

3�$���$

/
#
�
��
$
�7

�

5'���

�$2�""

3�

3��(�(	���

/����$

�#�$�&���

�

�

6
$%�����

0
#�
�

0
�#%%���"%

�
$�
"�$

	
2
����

)
#%
$

�

�.

�8

�
�

�9

	�"�$',�

��

�

�:

.

�
�$
$�
��
��

�
���-'%��

��-$

�

���,����

�$
�&�
��

�

�
��
�$
�

���"$�����-$

:

�

�

+#�$�

�:

�

�8

	����2$�#�
 �2$�

)
���-

��/
���""

6$%��6 '�"%

�$�( ���

+�
&�"
�$

5
'$2

0
��
���

�
 �"2��

�9

��

�

9

�

�

8

+'
���3
#;
%

0�
��
-�

 �
��

�'�
�%

	�
�

+#

)�
#%
2$
�

�

+
�&
#"

�
2
��
&��
�

�

 2
$�

��'�����
-�##�

�$��,�#""&��0#����

�����

	���

	$�����

0#���'

)#
%$
��$
�


�$$�'�,

3�������

3�$

02�

	��'

�
�

9
�

�

�
�

8
�

+',�

	�
��
��
$�
2$
�

�6

���
#�<

�����


$1$��(5'$2

0
��
��
'%

�


�
2�
��
-�

5'���

+'
��	�

$$
*$

�
�

�

	�
��
�5
'���
%

:

6
##
"�
��
"

<

�

<

9

	�
��
&'$
�"�
+#
�%
$

��

��

��

��

<

�(
<

��

�
<

���#����

:
��
#
�
�

�
.

�

�$
��
�"�
/
���
�+
#�
%$

9

�

�

�<
�.

�
�

�
8

�
9

��

3�$

5�
%��
$

+
'���3#;

�.

�
#�
,�
%

�


'�1$�

5'$
2

6##"

�
<

 �-�$%

	���

)�'2��%

�

0
#�
��

�
<

�� 8

���

�
<�
�

0#���,$

�
8

�
�

�
9
�

�
�
�

�
8
�

�
9

��

�
�

�

6$�1$�%

�

�:

�
�

/�,�#�'�

/#���

��$�%���

�

9

���2##"

��

�

0�#%$

�<

�

�8

�8

#��/#��,#�$���0#����

�����#���

�%�����
'����$&��"2��

!�&'�����

�9

9

��

��

��

�.

��

3��"�""��

��

3$���-$

�9

�<

:

�8

3�$

0�#&�

�9

<
�

U4258 School Ln

C2011 Llanfair Rd

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Consideration of Objections On street waiting and loading and parking modifications - Various streets, Newtown
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL
	PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED DECISION
	by
	County Councillor Jackie Charlton
	POrtfolio Holder for A GREENER POWYS
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Background
	3	Advice
	Background Papers used to prepare Report:
		Public Consultation Traffic Regulation Order proposal plans (Appendix A)
		Representations and officer responses/recommendations (Appendix B)
		Option B - Modified Traffic Regulation Order proposal plan for Llanfair Road and School Lane - AREA CODE CP185 (Appendix C)
	DELEGATED DECISION NEW REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION 3
	Appendix A - Public Consultation TRO plans
	Appendix B - Consultation Responses
	Appendix C - Option B Llanfair Road and School Lane TRO plan with road names


